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BEFORE THE HEARINGS CLERK
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGERGKGION 10

IN THE MATTER OF: )
)
Dyno Nobel, Inc. ) Docket No. EPCRA-10-2009-0205
)
Deer Island, Oregon ) Consent Agreement and Final Order
)
Respondent. )
)
)
[. AUTHORITY

t.1.  This Consent Agreement and Final Order ("CAFO”) is issued under the authority
vested in the Administrator of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) by Section’
325 'of the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act (“EPCRA” or “the Act”),
42 U.S.C. § 11045, and Section 109 of the Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation and Liability Act (“CERCLA™), 42 U.S.C. § 9609. The Admuinistrator has
delegated the authority to issue the Final Order contained in Part V of this CAFO to the Regional
Administrator of EPA Region 10, who in turn has redelegated this authority to the Regional
Judicial Officer.

1.2.  In accordance with Section 22.13(b) of the “Consolidated Rules of Practice

Goveming the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties,” 40 C.F.R. Part 22, EPA hereby
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issues and Dyno Nobel, Inc. (“Respondent”) hereby agrees (o issuance of the Final Order
contained in Part V of this CAFO.

II. PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

2.1.  In accordance with 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.13(b) and 22.45(b), issuance of this CAFO
commences this proceeding, which will conclude when the Final Order contained in Part V of
this CAFO becomes effective.

2.2, Respondent owns and operates a facility located at 63149 Columbia Highway,
Deer Island, Oregon (“'the Facility”).

2.3.  Respondent manufactures ammonia and nitric acid at the Facility.

24. A concise stalément of the factual bases for{élleging violations of the Act,
together with specific references to the provisions of the Act and implementing regulations
Respondent is alleged to have violated, appears in Part 111 of this CAFO.

III. ALLEGATIONS

3.1.  Section 103(a) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9603(a), requires the person in charge of
a facility to immediately notify the National Response Center (“NRC”) as soon as he ér she has
knowledge of a release of a hazardous substance from such facility in an amount equal to or
greater than the reportable quantity (“RQ").-

3.2, Section 304(a) and (b) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11004(a) and (b), require that if a
facility at which hazardous chemicals are produced. used, or stored releases an RQ of an
extremely hazardous substance and the release requires, or occurred in a manner that would

require, notice under Section 103(a) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9603(a), the owner or operator of
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the facility must immediately notify the State Emergency Response Commission (“SERC™) of
any state likely to be affected by the release and the Local Emergency Planning Committee
(“LEPC”) for any area likely to be affected by the release.

3.3, Under Section 101(21) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 960i(21), and Section 329(7) of
EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11049(7), “person™ means, among other things, any corporation.

3.4.  Under Section 101(9) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9601(9), “facility” means, among
other things, any building, structure, installation, storage container, equipment or any site or area
where a hazardous substance has been deposited, stored, disposed of, or placed, or otherwise
come to be located.

3.5.  Under Section 329(4) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.G: § 11049(4), “facility” means all
buildings, equipment, structures, and other stationary items that are located on a single site or on
contiguous or adjacent sites and which are owned or operated by the same person {or by any
person which controls, is controlled by, or under common control with, such person).

3.6.  Under Section 101(22) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9601(22), “release” means any
spilling, leaking, pumping, pouring, emitting, emptying, discharging, injecting, escaping,
leaching, dumping or disposing into the environment.

3.7. Ammoniais a CERCLA “hazardous substance,” 40 C.F.R. § 302.4, and an
“extremely hazardous substance” under Section 302 of EPCRA, 42 US.C. § 11002. The RQ 15
100 pounds, as indicated at 40 C.F.R. Part 355, Appendix A, and 40 C.F.R. § 304.2, with a

minimum threshold level of 500 pounds, as provided in 40 C.F.R. Part 370.
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3.8.  Under Section 325(c) of EPCRA. 42 U.S.C. § 11045(b), EPA may assesls a civil
penalty of up to $25,000 for each day of violation of Section 304 of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11004.
Under Section 109 of CERCLA,-42 U.S.C. § 9609, EPA may assess a civil penalty of up to
$25,000 'per day of violation of Section 103 of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9603. The Debt
Collection Improvement Act of 1996, 31 U.S.C. § 3701, and its implementing regulations at 42
C.F.R. Part 19, increased these statutory maximum penalties to $32,500 per day of violation
occurring after March 15, 2004,

3.9. Respondent 1s a corporation incorporated in the state of Delaware.

3.10. On September 29, 2008, the facility reieased approximately 448 pounds of
ammonia 1o the atmosphere. E

3.11. The facility managers knew of the release at approximately 9:41 p.m. on
September 29, 2008.

3.12. The release was likely to affect the States of Oregon and Washington.

3.13. The facility managers did not notify the NRC, the Oregon and Washington
SERCs and the Cowlitz County and Clark County LEPCs of the release until approximatcly'8:30
a.m. on September 30, 2008, approximately |1 hours after the release occurred.

IV. CONSENT AGREEMENT

4.1.  Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations contained in Part III of this
CAFO.

4.2.  Respondent neither admits nor denies the specific factual allegations contained in

Part [I1 of this CAFO.
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4.3, Respondent expressly walves any rights 1o contest the allegations and to appeal
the Final Order contained herein,

4.4, The provisions of this CAFO shall bind Respondent and its agents, servants,
employees, successors and assigns.

4.5, Except as provided in Paragraph 4. 10, each party shall bear its own costs in
bringing or defending this action,

4.6, Based on Respondent’s willingness (o settle this matter without litigation, the
nature of the violations, Respondent’s agreernent 1o perform a Supplemental Environmental
Project ("SEP), and other relevant factors, and in accordance with the Enforcement Response
‘P&fzc:y for Ssctions 304, 311 and 312 of the Emergency Plimning and Compuminy Right-to-Know
Act and Section 103 of the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Lighility
Act, EPA has determuned and Respondent agrees that an approptiate penalty 1o settle this action
is 17,000, of which $3,400 coostitutes payment for the alleged CERCLA vinlation and $13,600
constitutes payment for the alleged EPCRA violations,

4.7. Respondent consents o the issuance of the Final Order recited herein and o
payroent of the penalty cited in Paragraph 4.6 within 30 days of the effective date of the Figal
Order,

4.8 Payment under this CAFO shall be made by cashiec’s check or centified check,

payable to the order of "U.8. Treasury” and shall be delivered io the following addresses:
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(i) The EPCRA portiocn of the penalty ($13,600) shall be mailed to:

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Fines and Penalties

Ciacinnati Finance Center

PO Box 979077

St. Louis, MO 63197-9000

(ii)  The CERCLA pertion of the penalty ($3,400) shall be mailed to:

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Superfund Payments

Cincinnati Finance Center

PO Box 979076

St. Louis, MO 63197-9000

Respondent shall note on each check the title and docket number of this case.
4.9. Respondent shall submit a photocopy of the check described above to the
following individuals:

Regional Hearing Clerk

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Region 10

1200 Sixth Avenue, Suite 900

Mail Stop ORC-158

Seattle, Washington 98101

Suzanne Powers

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Region 10

Washington Operations Office

300 Desmond Drive SE, Suite 102
Lacey, Washington 98503

4.10  Should Respondent fail to pay the penalty assessed by this CAFO in full by its
due date, the entire unpatd balance of penalty and accrued interest shall become immediately due

and owing. Should such a failure to pay occur, Respondent may be subject to a civil action
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under Section § 325(f) of EPCRA, 42 U.8.C. § 11045(f), to collect any unpaid penalties, together
with interest, handling charges and nonpayment penalties, as set forth below.
4.11, Should Respondent fail to pay the penalty assessed by this CAFO in full by its

due date, Respondent shall also be responsible for payment of the following amounts:

(a) Interest. Any unpaid portion of the assessed penalty shall bear interest at the
rate established by the Secretary of the Treasury pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717(a)(1), from the
effective date of the Final Order contained herein, provided, however, that no interest shall be
payable on any portion of the assessed penalty that is paid within 30 days of the effective date of
the Final Order contained herein.

(b) Handling Charge. Pursuant to 31 U.S™C. § 3717{e)(1), a monthly handling
charge of $15 shall be paid if-any portion of the assessed penalty is more than 30 days past due.

(¢) Nonpayment Penalty. Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717(e)(2), a nonpayment

penalty of 6% per annum shall be paid on any portion of the assessed penalty that is more than
90 days past due, which nonpayment penalty shall be calculated as of the date the underlying
penalty first becomes past due. |

4.12. Respondent shall implement and complete a SEP that consists of 1) the purchase
of four laptop computers for use in Columbia River Fire & Rescue emergency response vehicles;
and 2) the purchase and installation an ammonia monitoring systern at all major release points at
the Facility to provide immediate alarms in the event of a release. The SEP includes the
components set forth at Appendix A. The SEP shall be implemented and completed within 90

days of the effective date of this CAFO, in accordance with all provisions described in this
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Consent A greement, Respondent agrees that the SEP ig"i.}ﬁ-%!i:z}dﬁ{% 10 IIRpIOYE SIS gendy
manggement by allowing a more immediate and effective response in the event of an emergengy.

413, Respondent’s deadline to perform the SEP shall be excused or extended if such
performance is prevented or delayed sgieiy by gvents which constitufe a Force Majeure event. A
Force Majeure event is defined as any event ansing from causes beyvond the reasonable control
of Respondent, including its employees, agents, consultanis and contractors, or which could aot
be overcome by due diligence and which delays or prevemts the performance of the SEP within
the specified time period. A Force Majeure event does not include, fnver glia, increased costs of
performance, changed sconomuc circumstances, changed labor relations, normal precipitation or
climate events, changed circumsiances arising out of the sale, lease or other transfer or
conveyance of title or ownership or possession of 3 site, or fatlure 1o obtain federal, s1ate or Iocal
permits,

. 4.14. The cost 1o Respondent of implementing the SEP shall be not less than $72,905.
Respondent shall include documentation of the expenditures made in connection with the 8EP a3
part of the SEP Completion Report.

4.15. Respondent hereby ceniifies that, as of the date of this Consemt Agreement,
Hespondent 18 not required o perform or develop the SEP by any federal, state or local law or
regulation: nor is Respondent required to perform or develop the SEP by any other agreement,
undsr 2 grant, or as injunctive relief in any other case. Respondent further certifies thal o has not
receivé&, ard is not presently negotiating 10 receive, eredit in any other enforcement alczian for

the SEP. Furthermore, for federal income 1ax purposes, Respondent agrees that i will neither
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capitalize into inventory or hasls nor deduct any costs or expenditures incurred in performing the
SEP.

4.16. Respondent shall submit a SEP Completion Report to EPA within 90 days of the
Effective Date of the CAFO, The SEP Completion Report shall contain the following
information:

{a} A description of the SEP as implemenied,

{b} lemized costs, documented by coples of purchase orders and receipis or
cancedled chegks;

{c) Certification that the SEP has been fully imiplemented pursuant 1o the
provisions of this CAFO; ©

{d) A description of any operating problems encountered and the salutions
thereto; and

{£} A deseription of the environmental and public health benefits resulting
from implementation of the SEP.

4.17. Respondent agrees that failure to implemant the SEP andior submit the SEP
Complation Report required by Paragraph 4.18, shall be deemed a violation of this CAFG, and
Respondent shall become labie for stipulated pmaiziﬁé pursuant 1o this CAFO.

4.18. Unless otherwise instructed in writing by EPA, Respondent shall submit all

notices and reports required by this CAFO by first class madl, overnight mail, or hand delivery

tan
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http:hernil.ed

Suzanne-Powers .

U5, Environmental Protection Agency
Region 10

Washington Operations Office

304 Desmond Drive SE, Saite 102
Lacey, WA 898303

4.1%, Respondent agrees that EPA may inspect Respondent’s records relaled o the SEP
at any reasonable firne in order o confirm that the SEP 15 being undertaken in conformity with
the representations mads herein.

4.20.  Respondent shall maintain legible copies of documentation of the underlying dala
for documents or reports subimitted to EPA porsuant to this CAFO untit the SEP Complétion
Report Is accepted pursuant o Paragraph 4.21., and Respondent shall provide the documentation
of any such underlying data o EPA within 15 days of a writlen regeest for such information. 1o
all documents or reports including, without fimitation, the SEP Completion Report submitted 10
EPA pursuant to this CAFOG, Respondent shall, by a corporate officer, sign and cerufy under
penaliy of law that the information contained in such document or repont 15 frue, accurate and not
musieading by signing the fellowing statement

eertify under penalty of law that T have examined and am familiar with the information

submitied in this document and all attachments and that, based on my inguiry of those

individuals immediaely responsible {or obtaining the information, 1 believe that the
information 1§ trug, accurate and complete. T am aware that there are significant penalties
for submitting false mformation, inclading the possibility of fines and imprisonment,

421, Following receipt of the SEP Completion Keport described in Paragraph 4,16,

EPA will do one of the following: (i) accept the Report; (i) reject the Report, notify Respondent

in writing of deficiencies in the Report and provide Respondent an additional 30 days in which 1o
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correct any deficiencies, or {iu) reject the Report and S@ﬁk stipulated penaliies in gocordance with
Paragraph 4.23,

4.22, Inthe event that the SEP 15 not completed as contemplated by this CAFO, and this
failure was oot caused solely by events which constitule o Porce Majeure 2s defined by
Paragraph 4.13, then stipulated penaltiés shall be due and payable by Respondent 1o EPA in
accordance with Paragraph 4.23. Schedules herein may be extended based upon mutual written
agreement of the parties.
of this CATFO reiating to the performance of the SEP described above and/or 1o the extent that
the aciual expendiinres for the SEF do not equal or exceedithe cost of the SEP described in this
CAFO, Respondent shall be Hable for stipulated penalties according to the provisions set forth
below:

(i} Ifthe SEF 18 not salisfactonly completed pursuant to thas CAFQO, Respondent
shall pay & stipulated penaity to the United States in the amount of @’?Z}}{;?S; iess the amount
actually expended.

(it For failure to submat the SEP Completion Report as required by Paragraph
4.16, Respondent shall pay a stipalated penalty in the amount $100 for each day after the report
is doe unti the report is recetved by EPA, not to exceed $2,500.

4.24. Stipulaied penalties under Paragraph 4,23 shall begin 1o accrue on the day afier
pecformance is due, and shall continue to acerue through the final day of satisfactory completion

of the activity, subject o the maximum set forth in Paragraph 4.23{i1).
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4.25. Respondent shall pay stipulated penalties within 15 days of receipt of a written
demand by EPA for such penalties. Payment shall be in accordance with the provisions of
Paragraph 4.8. Interest and late charges shall be paid as specified in Paragraph 4.11.

4.26. Except as provided in Paragraph 4.30, nothing in the CAFO shall be construed as
prohibiting, altering or in any way limiting the ability of EPA to seek any other remedies or
sanctions available by virtue of Respondent’s violation of this agreement or of the statutes and
regulations upon which this agreement is based, or for Respondent’s violation of any applicable
provision of law.

4.27. Any public statement, oral or written, in print, film or other media made by
Respondent making reference to the SEP shall include thefollowing language: “This project
was undertaken in connection with the settlement of an administrative enforcement action taken
by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency under the Emergency Planning and Community
Right-to-Know Act and the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and
Liability Act.”

4.28. This CAFO shall not relieve Respondent of its obligation to comply with all
applicable provisions of federal, state or local law, nor shall it be construed to be a ruling on, or
determination of, any issue related to any federal, state or local permit, nor shall it be construed
to constitute EPA approval of the equipment or technology purchased by Respondent in

connection with the SEP under the terms of this CAFO.,
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4.2%.  Respondent represents that 3t 18 July authorized to execute this CAFQ and that the
party sigrung this CAFQ on its behalf is duly suthorized 1o bind Respondent (o the terms of thig o
CAFQ.

430, Compliance with all the terms and conditions of this CAFC shall result in full

settlement and satisfaction of all claims for penaliies alleged in Section 1L

STIPULATED AND AGREED:

FOR DYNG NOBEL, INC.

Signature: A

Erint Name: ]D /'f‘ Jig? é— iﬁ} m&fs’ig G
vue VI NTROGES P §/2/05

.

FOR US ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION 14

4 | i -f-f Drated: ?/'/?!/4 >

‘Z}zrec{or Ofac€ of Compliance and Enforcement g
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V. FINAL ORDER

5.1.  The terms of the foregoing Consent Agreement are hereby ratified and
incorporated by reference into this Final Order. Respondent is hereby ordered to comply with
the terms of settlement contained in the Consent Agreement,

5.2.  This CAFO constitutes a settlement by EPA of all claims for civil penalties
pursuant to EPCRA and CERCLA for the particular violations alleged in Part III. In accordance
with 40 C.F.R. § 22.31(a), nothing in this CAFO shall affect the right of EPA or the United
States to pursue appropriate injunctive or other equitable relief or criminal sanctions for any
violations of law. This CAFO does not waive, extinguish or otherwise affect Respondent’s

obligations to comply with all applicable provisions of the Act and regulations issued thereunder.

This Final Order shall become effective upon filing.

' SO ORDERED this 47 day of Soplomda 5009

Thomas M. Jahnke U
Regional Judicial Officer
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Region 10
Consent Agreement and Final Order U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
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Appendix A
Dyno Nobel, Inc. will install an ammonia monitoring system for use in identifying releases as
they may occur, and will also provide four laptops to Columbia River Fire and Rescue for use in
its emergency vehicles, as provided below:

Wireless Monitoring System

Wireless Sensors

Relief Valve 1D Associated Vessel Cost
RV-659 C-651 First Absorber $995
RV-660 C-652 Second Absorber $995
RV-655 V-678 First Flash Separator $995
RV-653 A V-654 Second Flash Separator $995
RV-6009 V-618 Ammonia Let Down Drum $995
RV-6011 E-623 Ammonia Condenser $995
RV-704 E-700 Ammonia Vaporizer $995
RV-225 V-203 Ammonia Storage Sphere $995
RV-226 V-203 Ammonia Storage Sphere $995
RV-222B V-204 Ammonia Storage Sphere ; $995
RV-221C V-204 Ammonia Storage Sphere $995
RV-222C V-205 Ammonia Storage Sphere $995
RV-221B V-205 Ammonia Storage Sphere $995
RV-220E Refrigerant Ammonia Condenser $995
RV-220F Refrigerant Ammonia Condenser $995
RV-227E Discharge Ammonia $995
RV-227F Discharge Ammonia $995
RV-229 Refrigerant Skid Ammonia Compression Suction $995
RV-674A Carbamate Pump (Suction) $995
RV-674B Carbamate Pump (Suction) $995
RV-674C Carbamate Pump (Suction) $995
RV-652A Carbamate Pump (Discharge) $995
RV-652B Carbamate Pump (Discharge) $995
RV-652C Carbamate Pump (Discharge) $995
RV-656 |* Decomposer Separator $995
RV-658 2" Decomposer Separator $995
RV-668A S. Ammonia Feed Pump (Suction) $995
RV-668B N. Ammonia Feed Pump (Suction) $995
RV-669 Inlet (liquid) to Ammonia Storage Tank $995
RV-672 [nlet (shell) to Ammoaia Condenser $995
RV-675 Tube Side Ammonia Subcooler $995
RV-6542 NH3 line from NH3 Storage Tank to AN Unit $995
Total $30,845

Additional Items needed for Installation

(1) Base Station $1400
(1) Antennae ' 3695
Cabling for Modbus to DCS $25

Miscellaneous Conduit for Hardware $120



DCS Programming for Hardware (~40 hours x $200)
Total A

Rupture Disc System for the Ammonia Stora'ge Spheres (Appendix B)

(6) Rupture Discs
(6) Rupture Disc Holders

Total
Computer Equipment for Columbia River Fire and Rescue (Appendix C)

(4) Laptops for CRFR Emergency Response Vehicles

Total

$8000

$1024

$4,075
311,605

$15,680

$16140

$72,905



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The understgned certifies that the oniginal of the attached CONSENT AGREEMENT
AND FINAL ORDER in In the Matter of: DYNO NOBEL, INC., DOCKET NO.: EPCRA-
10-1009-0208 was filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk on September 4, 2009,

On September 4, 2009 the undersigned certifies that a frue and correct copy of the
document was delivered 1o

Stephanie Mairs, Esquire

U8 Environmental Protection Agency
1200 Sixth Avenue, QRC-{58

Suite 800

Seaitle, WA SRI01

Further, the undersigned cerfifies that a true and corret copy of the aforementioned
docunient was placed in the United States mail cortified/return receipt on September 4, 2009, to:

Dyno Nobie, Inc.

Philip G Mormrow

63148 Columbia River Highway
 Deer Island, OR 970(54-2401

DATED this 4® day of September 2009

: A
e yﬁ.wywé"“:g s

Carol Kenpedy -
Regional Hearing Clerk
EPA Region 10




